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CAUTION: External email.


Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe.


Subject: RE: Nelson City Centre Info Memo - Weekly Catch up
Date: Wednesday, 14 June 2023 10:22:11 AM


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Hi
 
I’ve sent you an invite for 1pm Thursday hope that works?
 
Are you able to share the T & T or Opus recommended ground and floor level part of your due
diligence with me?  I’d like to share it with the engineers before the meeting.
 
Lisa
 


From:  
Sent: Wednesday, 14 June 2023 10:04 am
To: 
Cc: 


Subject: RE: Nelson City Centre Info Memo - Weekly Catch up
 


 
Hi Lisa,
 
As discussed at yesterday’s meeting, would it be possible to meet with some of the
flooding consent compliance people for a quick chat next week?
Calendars will be a challenge so it might only be one/two of us from KO but how is Monday
afternoon or Thursday afternoon?
 
Regards,


 
-----Original Appointment-----
From:  
Sent: Friday, 9 June 2023 3:21 PM
To: 
Cc: 
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Subject: Nelson City Centre Info Memo - Weekly Catch up
When: Tuesday, 13 June 2023 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC+12:00) Auckland, Wellington.
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting
 
 
 
Sorry guys – trying to suit diaries and struggling.
 
Hopefully this suits better?
 
C
 
Extending this series
 
Hi team,
 
I will pop these in as re-occurring. We can amend as needed and I’ll try and keep them
short.
 
C
______________________________________________________________________________
__


Microsoft Teams meeting
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting


Meeting ID:  


Download Teams | Join on the web


Or call in (audio only)
+64 4-280 7347,,797052717#   New Zealand, Wellington
Phone Conference ID: 797 052 717#
Find a local number | Reset PIN


Learn More | Meeting options


______________________________________________________________________________
__
 


www.govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand government services


 


Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of Kāinga Ora. This
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https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_ZjcxZDNlYTItYmY2NC00N2ZhLTk5ZWYtNjQxNjkwMzQ4NDkz%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522317e9866-b1a0-4fc0-8dd8-373f03f571bd%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522d17a8b21-2fa8-4535-96da-4ac3c263f103%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Cmaria.dettmer%40kaingaora.govt.nz%7C1388ef8077634e52d2bc08db6c5c9f4a%7C317e9866b1a04fc08dd8373f03f571bd%7C0%7C0%7C638222917309778584%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Kn%2FSyt352SDd6Ha0nqUZ%2F3hAIGIdmnbPHmyIeNazDzQ%3D&reserved=0

https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fmicrosoft-teams%2Fjoin-a-meeting&data=05%7C01%7Cmaria.dettmer%40kaingaora.govt.nz%7C1388ef8077634e52d2bc08db6c5c9f4a%7C317e9866b1a04fc08dd8373f03f571bd%7C0%7C0%7C638222917309934832%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=L5TKSjpdJ%2FyGlvMRGSqrVq3tbNofq5smgc5HR7PJqH8%3D&reserved=0
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message and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be legally privileged, and
are solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the
person responsible for delivery to the intended recipient, you have received this message in
error.


 


Please: 
(1) reply promptly to that effect, and remove this email, any attachment and the reply from
your system; 
(2) do not use, disclose or act on this email in any other way. Thank you.


This email is covered by the disclaimers which can be found at
http://nelson.govt.nz/exclusion-of-liability
If you have received this email and any attachments to it in error, please take no action
based on it, copy it or show it to anyone. Please advise the sender and delete your copy.
Thank you.
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From:
To:
Subject: KO Confidential Briefing 29 June 2023 - Notes on Direction
Date: Thursday, 27 July 2023 10:11:56 AM
Attachments: KO Confidential Briefing 29 June 2023 - Notes on Direction.docx


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Kia ora Maria and Robbie
 
Minutes aren’t officially taken for workshops, however the attached summary of key
questions/direction from the Councillor’s was taken by the administration assistant in my team. 
Please note they aren’t official minutes just notes taken to assist our team to recall what each
Councillor is concerned about.
 
Nikki H has also confirmed your other email of key directions as below.
 


Topic Issue Direction / Path forward
Density Feedback from market test


should concern from
developers over the level of
density being proposed.


Proceed to RFP with current
expectation of 175 units.


Design requirements for
landmark sites –


Requirement for appropriate
bulk, high quality, interactive
and accessible street frontage
could be difficult to balance
with financial feasibility and
flood risk requirements.


Proceed to RFP with current
intent of council resolutions,
noting Council is keen to see
viable development and is
prepared to flex if required.


Mix of tenure:
3.(ii) (f) Less than 50% of
household units will be for
social housing, the remainder
will be a mix of affordable
housing types.


Should some market housing
be included for mixed
community and better
financial feasibility?


Council open to this and
enabled via Mayor’s report
in July meeting.
 
Kāinga Ora will work
internally to confirm its
appetite to be the social
housing provider or
otherwise


Affordability criteria for
housing


Resolution calls for a mix of
affordable housing types but


Proceed to RFP with current
wording of council


s 9(2)(a)
s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(h)
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KO Confidential Briefing 29 June 2023


Attendees: Deputy Mayor O’Neil Stevens, Mayor, CEO Nigel Philpott, Cr Skinner, Cr Rollo, Cr Brand, Cr Rainey, Cr Sanson, Cr Paki Paki, Cr Courtney 


Group Managers: Mandy Bishop, Nikki Harrison, Nicky McDonald





Questions:


Cr Rainey – Partner opportunities? Are there any examples in NZ Councils where this has happened? Specifically, where the development partner is KO. 


Mayor – are there other proposals around NZ where KO are partnered with commercial developers and Councils to create affordable housing. Believes there are a few but each would differ depending on the proposal.


Cr Sanson – Definition of key worker housing? How does this differ from Betts Apartments as this is not considered “affordable”?


Mayor – has raised the potential of using an area close to the Hospital for keyworkers during construction of the new Hospital that could then be transferred to social afterwards (partnership with KO). Would rather leave KO to define the site for Achilles/Rutherford (whether its for key workers, affordable, social)


Mayor – a development of this scale is $120M plus, of the 6 proposals how many of them had the capital to fund their share of the development? 


Cr Sanson – understand that this was an initial test of the market to see if there was interest and if there was an appropriate response around the table would they be going out for a full EOI/tender?


Mayor – very supportive of the next steps and going out to the market. Biggest hurdle is to find a developer who will put the amount at risk in the current market.


Cr Paki Paki – Was the commercial iwi proposal separate to the engagement iwi response? did you approach post settlement entities (Whakatu Inc, Whakaerewere – didn’t catch this one noted sorry?) in this process of the soft EOI. 


Mayor – for EOI how critical was the question on getting definitive answers on sea level and floor levels, how much certainty can be given to applicants before we get to the next stage of the EOI?


Cr Sanson – interested in timing of when change is going to be notified for sea level rises and how it affects the floor levels, is it dependant on central GOVT or local?


Mayor – Need to have a discussion between KO & Council so that when go out to the next stage have the best quality information and be as definitive as possible on Sea Level rises. Achilles is an area of reclaimed land – adds to costs. What information does KO have on building foundations on reclaimed land, what level of information do we have on the Geotech of the site and feasibility of site and costings so far for the foundation?


Cr Sanson – Has consideration been given to having more housing units or an additional 2 or 3 stories to balance the costs of having the high costs of the foundation.


Mayor – Foundations needed are relative to hight, costs increase relative to the height.


Cr Rainey – has consideration been given to looking at another area of the carpark, broaden the scope of the density over a bigger footprint. Does this preclude having carparking underneath the building?


Cr Sanson – would it be something to consider with the street frontage having a commercial street frontage and then away from the street have carparking?


Mayor – to manage a climate change risk it would be more feasible it to make the bottom floor a carpark area, does the Geotech report present more challenges than in the initial proposal indicated? 


A substantive part of the development in a big investment in the stormwater, do we get a dividend by improving the stormwater by being able to lower the floor level? Is the minimum floor level guidance varied dependant on upgrades to infrastructure?


Process – point in consultation, how much would we have to change the resolution in Oct 21 to trigger significance for going out to a full SCP consultation. Would changes to tenure (market value housing), height of building, carparking result in engagement?


Cr Sanson – if we retained 175 minimum housing but enabled the opportunity to provide key worker housing would this trigger a SCP. A lot of community wants to see affordable housing. If we retained affordable housing but allowed for key worker and other types of housing would this trigger significant change?


Cr Rainey – Has KO been involved in other projects that included other civic projects such as a library or community hub in the bottom floor? Would it trigger further funding avenues if a community hub was part of the development?


Mayor – Thinks the most challenging hurdle for KO and Council is to attract a private sector provider, need to provide more flexibility than currently in resolutions. Prefer Option 1 and then go out for engagement with the community post RFP process on a specific concept.


Cr Sanson – need to be flexible to be able to do this, need for housing is high. Support option 2 amending constraints. Thinks Cr Stallard would be supportive of this too. 


Mayor - How important is Council formally amending the Council Resolutions to be able to run a good RFP?


Cr Sanson – if we don’t have some level of clarity for potential partners, they could be uncertainty and hesitant to put up the risk of the development.


Cr Rainey – how long is the minimum consultation time? Would like to go out with the RFP for feedback. Don’t want to hold up the process anymore than needed. 


Mayor – Should he include in the Mayors’ Report a resolution to include market value housing and affordable housing in the tenure? Resolution for KO to go out to RFP including the resolution with the ability to include a mix of market value, social, affordable housing.


Mayor - Concerns about having a high percentage of social housing in the city centre


CEO – comfortable with the proposal to include a resolution in the Mayors Report about including market value housing option for RFP.


Cr Brand – do we need to include a percentage for the Market Housing? Are we providing a different definition to affordable housing then if including market value housing? Likely to get push back from ratepayers if you just put in market value housing with no definition around what that means. 


Cr Skinner – Is there a timeline for developing the locations? 


Mayor – Options: 


· Tell KO to go out with the current resolutions with some flexibility around criteria


· Through the Mayor Report add a resolution to include market value housing in the RFP.


[bookmark: _Hlk139003260]Cr Rainey – supports include resolution in the Mayors’ Report to include market value housing in the RFP – In the EOI what % would it say for market housing, social, affordable? Whose decision is it to decide the % mix?


Cr Courtney – We need to tell the community what we are planning, housing is paramount, and we don’t want to exclude anyone. Supports include resolution for in the Mayors’ Report to include market value housing in the RFP.


Cr Brand – What is KO definition of affordable housing mix? Does it already cover market value?


Cr O’Neil Stevens – have discussed definitions of affordability extensively in Governance Committee. Support resolution for Mayors’ Report to include market value housing in the RFP. Supportive of enabling KO to be able to proceed forward with the process. Would like to test legally to make sure we have clear advice on triggering SCP.


[bookmark: _Hlk139003430]Cr Sanson – Support from Aaron and I for resolution in Mayors’ Report to expand scope to include market value option in RFP.


Mayor – Wording of resolution - The proposal may include a portion of market housing, following the RFP the complete development will need to come back to Council for approval. Need to write measure today then, consensual view from Councillors to agree to this, would need some additional information to make sure we aren’t triggering a SCP.


Cr Rainey – need to be clear on wording. Would be worth discussing this at Housing Taskforce meeting this afternoon. 


Cr Paki Paki – unappealing to have a vague scope, need to have some flexibility in what can be provide in the tenders. Suggests KO look at pipeline of what projects are already in progress as may affect tenders if developers are already busy, would like to go out for RFP before Christmas. In support of adding resolution in Mayors’ Report to expand scope to include market value option in RFP.


Cr O’Neil Stevens – Requests some clarity on the next steps for Council and KO. What’s are the next steps on updating the resolutions?


Mayor – Councillors’ need to express strongly opposing view to Mayor by the end of today about including in Mayors Report and confirm it won’t trigger SCP.


If above is not meet will need to have a separate paper to August meeting or KO can go ahead with RFP with current resolutions and boundaries. 






there isn’t a clear definition of
“affordable” – discussion
covered the ambiguity of key
worker housing and Council’s
previous work in this space to
define affordable and
concluded that this is a high
bar.


resolutions, noting some
anticipated forms of
affordable product,
affordable rentals, Kiwibuild
etc. Noting Council is keen to
see viable development
occur which includes an
appropriate amount of
affordable housing.


Climate resilience
 
3. (ii) (e) Inclusion of quality,
climate resilient, sustainable,
design and building
practices.
 
3.(ii) (a) High quality, high
amenity, interactive and
accessible design to street
and laneway edges.


Providing certainty and clear
direction is key to give
developers certainty,
including a clear path to
consent. It was discussed that
there is significant uncertainty
around an acceptable floor
level given the expected
guidance update from MfE on
sea level rise that may or be
adopted by Council later this
year.
The indicative acceptable level
of RL4.2m is in conflict with
council resolution 3. (ii) (a)
and (b) which require an
accessible and compatible
street/development interface.
 


Proceed to RFP without
ability to provide certainty
noting this will likely be a
point of concern from
respondents.


Market value sale
expectation
3.(i) That the sites be sold for
market value to be
determined by agreement
with Kāinga Ora having
regard to independent
valuations for the site
obtained by Kāinga Ora and
Nelson City Council.


Given the above uncertainties
and our limited ability to
provide confidence and
certainty. On top of current
market challenges to fund and
finance developments. We
will have to be realistic about
potential valuations here. 


Proceed with RFP as per
resolutions.


Partnership opportunities
and expectations


Discussions included ensuring
we are cognisant of related /
complementary council works
– flood gate work, wider
strategy work, IAF project, etc.


Proceed with RFP as per
resolutions.


3. Approves the sale of 69 to Kāinga Ora is not mandated to Proceed with RFP as per
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101 Achilles Avenue and 42
Rutherford Street to Kāinga
Ora…


develop and sell to market
affordable housing, and
requires a development
partner to facilitate this. The
requirement for Kāinga Ora to
purchase both sites places
limitation on the subsequent
on-sale of sites to a
development partner, and also
limits the ability for
development of only one site,
or for independent
development of each site by
Kāinga Ora and / or a
development partner.


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
Subject: Advice for sale of City Centre Sites
Date: Monday, 6 November 2023 10:18:46 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg


Kia ora 
 
Further to our discussion last week, we sought advice on the following issues:


1/ Based on our standard DA, what is the exposure to Kāinga Ora and the local council (land owner) if Kāinga Ora brokered a
deal for the dev on NCC's land and the developer commenced but was unable to complete the development - what would our
role and financial exposure be? Should a developer commence the development of the site under a DA, and complete 50% or
75% and then be unable to continue, what would be the likely outcome and our obligations/exposures? Would Kāinga Ora still
carry the liability for the site?


2/ Re the flooding advice - if we enter into a sale process with full visibility of the sea level rise issue but act as broker on the
sale of the land, what is the extent of our legal and then reputational risk associated with the issue and any subsequent
events/damages. Noting that we will be fully transparent when it comes to sharing our due diligence with potential
buyers. This needs to be considered from the perspective of Kāinga Ora, NCC and NCC consenting.


Hope this is helpful,


C


 
 


*Please note my new mobile number: 
 


   
 


   
Project Director Mobile: 
Greenfield and Complex Projects
Urban Development and Delivery         


Email: c


 
 


Freephone: 0800 801 601  |  Kāinga Ora - Homes and Communities
PO BOX 0000 Wellington 6140  |  New Zealand Government  |  www.kaingaora.govt.nz
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CAUTION: External email.


Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe.


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: Draft report
Date: Wednesday, 29 November 2023 12:32:08 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg


That would be my recommendation (pending the identification of a suitable alternative
site) for reducing risk, limiting existing liability and ensuring we develop a fit for purpose
offering to meet the needs of the city development objectives and provide appropriate
housing for those most in need.
 


From:  
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 12:27 PM
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: RE: Draft report
 


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


So just checking would your preferred option be another site?
 


From:  
Sent: Wednesday, 29 November 2023 11:46 am
To: 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: Draft report
 


 
Hi 
 
Looks good and I have included a handful of suggestions in the attached for your
consideration.
 
The only other point not highlighted in the report, which you might like to include
somewhere is that the process of the EoI has helped to strengthen Kāinga Ora-Council-Iwi
relationships and develop a common understanding on the need for collaboration in
solving the housing crisis. Up to you if you think there is a place for that.
 
You may also like to note that the report is submitted with the input and support of Kāinga
Ora and the IAF too.


s 9(2)(a)
s 9(2)(a)
s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)
s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)
s 9(2)(a)s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)
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cITY
beveLopMent | FE
NELSON Nelson City Council

Te Kaunihera o Whakatu
City-wide solutions








 
Happy to chat again if you need.
 
C
 
 


From:  
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 9:21 AM
To: 
Subject: Draft report
 


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Morena Colleen
 
Apologies I haven’t caught you up with stuff at this end, there have been a lot of changes in
direction, but I hope I have finally landed the report which is due end of day today.
 
I thought to save time, I’d send you a copy, in case you have time to look at it before our
meeting, if not we can discuss during our meeting.
 
The recommendations took an unexpected turn on Tuesday in the CE’ office while meeting with
Julia so apologies I haven’t kept you up to speed on that.
 
As it’s a long report setting out all the background the particular sections I think you would be
interested in checking I have worded Kāinga Ora’s position correctly are:
 
Section 1
Section 4.20 onwards in the background is the part where you came on board – the previous
stuff has been in previous reports.
Legal section 4.28
Section 5 – could you have a look to ensure I haven’t overstated or understated the risks in
relation to the options and Kāinga Ora’s position.
 
Tracked changes work good for me.
 
I have also sent this to Suresh to review the IAF parts and particularly our risk in relation to
funding for the options.  After you have viewed, I will send a copy to Julia.
 
 
 
 
Thanks
 
 


Strategic Housing Adviser


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)
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Nelson City Council / Te Kaunihera o Whakatû
03 546 0375
www.nelson.govt.nz
 
My usual office hours are 8am to 5pm Monday to Thursday
 


 
I will send a copy to Julia.
 
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
Subject: FW: Meeting request
Date: Wednesday, 1 May 2024 9:13:30 AM
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From:  
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2023 4:22 PM
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: RE: Meeting request
 
Kia ora 
 
I have Monday 9am, Tuesday 8.30, 4pm or Thursday 11am?
 


From:  
Sent: Tuesday, November 21, 2023 3:20 PM
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: Meeting request
 


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the
sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Kia ora Julia
 
Nikki Harrison and I would like to meet with you to discuss the report going to Council on 14
December.
 
Do you have any availability next week please?
If you et me know some options I can find a time when Niki is also free.
 
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


RELEASED UNDER THE 


OFFICIAL INFORMATION ACT 1982





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
Subject: Potential alternative site (confidential)
Date: Monday, 4 December 2023 3:54:46 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Hi Colleen and Maria
 
I am wondering if you have some time to provide your preliminary thoughts on an alternative site, in case I am asked questions at the Council meeting week.


Given the little time I am giving you (between now and next Wednesday) and the limited information contained below would you be able to provide any indication of whether Kāinga ora would
be interested in this as an alternative site for part market, mostly affordable and some social housing (or any combination of that)?
 


They say there’s always a compromise when buying a property, but location, location, location…………………….
 
Any initial thoughts? Need any further info that I may have? Like to discuss via teams?
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regards
 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This email is covered by the disclaimers which can be found at http://nelson.govt.nz/exclusion-of-liability
If you have received this email and any attachments to it in error, please take no action based on it, copy it or show it to anyone. Please advise the sender and delete your copy. Thank
you.
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CAUTION: External email.


Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender
and know the content is safe.


You don't often get email from mayornick@ncc.govt.nz. Learn why this is important


From:  
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 7:51 AM
To: 
Subject: Re: Nelson City Centre
 


CAUTION: External email. Do not click or open attachments unless you recognise the sender
and know the content is safe. If unsure use the Report Phishing button.


Kia Ora
 
Thanks for info. Partially answers.
 
I would like to know the date of the meeting in early Nov of the KO project team when it was agreed
it should not proceed. Only if easy to confirm.
 
Nga mihi nui,
 


 
Get Outlook for iOS


From: 
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 7:38:21 AM
To: 
Subject: Nelson City Centre
 


 
Kia ora 
 
As discussed on Friday.
 
The decision not to progress with the City Centre site was formally agreed with your staff, in a
hui I attended on 28 November.
 
In early November the Kāinga Ora project team, agreed that Kāinga Ora should not proceed
based on feasibility and flood challenges.
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We did not formally test the market by way of RFP.
 
The earlier Expression of Interests, showed willing parties but they also raised concerns on
feasibility (affordable/social housing only).
 
I hope this answers your question.
 
Ngā mihi, 
 


 


govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand government services


 


Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of Kāinga Ora. This message
and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be legally privileged, and are solely for
the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible
for delivery to the intended recipient, you have received this message in error.


 


Please: 
(1) reply promptly to that effect, and remove this email, any attachment and the reply from
your system; 
(2) do not use, disclose or act on this email in any other way. Thank you.


This email is covered by the disclaimers which can be found at http://nelson.govt.nz/exclusion-
of-liability
If you have received this email and any attachments to it in error, please take no action based
on it, copy it or show it to anyone. Please advise the sender and delete your copy. Thank you.
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Media release 


February 2024 


Nelson central city housing options continue to be explored 


Kāinga Ora Homes and Communities will continue to work in partnership with Nelson City Council to look at 
options for providing housing in Nelson’s city centre, following a decision not to proceed with a proposed 
development on two sites in Achilles Avenue and Rutherford Street. 


In October 2021, Nelson City Council agreed to sell the Achilles Avenue and Rutherford Street sites to Kāinga 
Ora for the development of housing, subject to conditions around the mix of social and affordable housing 
the proposed development would include, and the building design. It was also subject to Kāinga Ora carrying 
out due diligence on the site. 
 
Regional Director Nelson, Marlborough and West Coast Julia Campbell says thorough investigations have 
shown that is not financially feasible for Kāinga Ora to provide a mix of only social and affordable housing on 
the Achilles Avenue and Rutherford Street sites. 
 
“We remain committed to working closely with Nelson City Council as together we recognise the need for 
housing in Nelson’s city centre,” Ms Campbell says. “Kāinga Ora is also committed to providing more public 
housing across Nelson.  
 
“Our early plans suggest we could provide up to 270 new homes in the coming years,” she says. “This 
includes our proposed plans for new homes in Examiner and Nile Streets, on the city fringe, which are 
progressing well.” 
 
Find out more about Kāinga Ora plans to provide more homes in Nelson: www.kaingaora.govt.nz/nelson 


About Kāinga Ora – Homes and Communities 


Kāinga Ora is the country’s public housing landlord with over 70,000 properties providing homes to nearly 
185,000 New Zealanders. 


We are leading the largest state house building programme in decades with more than 9,000 newly built 
public homes delivered in recent years and more than 6,600 homes under construction or contract.  


As an urban development agency Kāinga Ora is enabling, facilitating and delivering tens of thousands of 
market, affordable and public homes across Aotearoa. We do this by working with iwi, public and private 
sector partners. 


Through best practice urban planning and design, we are also ensuring the neighbourhoods those homes are 
in have the infrastructure and amenities that make them a great place to live.  
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		1. Purpose of Report

		1.1 To consider whether the Council remains committed to achieving a partnership with Kāinga Ora for a housing development at 42 Rutherford Street and 69 to101 Achilles Avenue acknowledging that the following two constraints have caused delays:

		1.2 Kāinga Ora consider that before commencing with a Request for Proposal(RFP) process there is a requirement to resolve outstanding questions of legal, financial, and reputational exposure relating to unresolved coastal inundation and the flooding p...



		2. Recommendation

		3. Exclusion of the Public

		3.1 This report has been placed in the confidential part of the agenda in accordance with section 48(1)(a) and section 7 of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987. The reason for withholding information in this report under th...



		4. Background

		4.1 On 29 June 2021 the Council adopted the Long-Term Plan (LTP) 2021-31. One of the Council’s key priorities in the LTP is housing affordability and intensification. Partnering with Central Government and utilising Council property is a work programm...

		4.2 From the 30 August 2021 to 1 October 2021 Council sought public feedback on a proposal to sell 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue and/or 42 Rutherford Street to Kāinga Ora for social and affordable housing development.

		4.3 On 28 October 2021, after considering public feedback on the proposal to sell 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue and/or 42 Rutherford Street to Kāinga Ora for social and affordable housing developments, the Council resolved:

		Resolved CL/2021/001

		That the Council

		4.4 The Kāinga Ora Governance Reference Group and its Terms of Reference was approved in resolutions 7 and 8 of report R25874 at the 1 July 2021 Council meeting:

		4.5 On 28 July 2022 Council considered report R26867 which provided an update on the progression of the social and affordable housing development on Achilles and Rutherford Streets.  That report highlighted that since November 2021 officers have been ...

		4.6 As a result of this work, it was identified that to proceed with the proposed social and affordable housing development on 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue and 42 Rutherford Street some challenges need to be overcome.

		4.7 Kāinga Ora operational requirements do not currently support mixed tenure (social and affordable or market housing) within a single building.  In addition, while affordable housing has recently become part of Kāinga Ora’s mandate, no policy, defin...

		4.8 On the site at 42 Rutherford Street, it is likely a mix of tenures (social and affordable) within one building will be required due to site constraints, however there is opportunity for dual entry points. This would unlikely meet Kāinga Ora operat...

		4.9 Following the 28 October Council meeting, and after determining funding and operational constraints, Kāinga Ora came back to officers with a proposal that they fund and construct a 100% social housing development on the 42 Rutherford Street site. ...

		4.10 The funding of the construction and ownership of mixed tenure social and affordable housing has a less clear pathway for 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue.  The cost of development on the Achilles Avenue site is significant and presents challenges in ach...

		4.11 An innovative and flexible approach in partnership with iwi/Māori and/or private partners will be required to achieve Council and Kāinga Ora’s affordable housing priorities for both 42 Rutherford Street and 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue.

		4.12 Kāinga Ora advised that they can participate in a commercial partnership with another party to deliver affordable housing and may be able to fund land development for this, subject to a viable housing delivery model being in place and funding to ...

		4.13 Kāinga Ora have since been investigating an alternative delivery model in partnership with Council, iwi/Māori, CHPs and/or private partners to develop options to structure a commercial arrangement to deliver social and affordable housing on the A...

		4.14 Flexibility on the definition/scale of affordable housing will be necessary to ensure commercial viability.  It is likely that affordability may need to be defined by a range of price points to income ratios, different typologies, and tenures and...

		4.15 The Council’s decision of 28 October 2021 to sell 42 Rutherford Street and 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue to Kāinga Ora for a social and affordable housing development was subject to an approved negotiating brief that included numerous terms.

		4.16 A key term of the negotiating brief is that the development would be less than 50% social housing with the remainder being a mix of affordable housing types.

		4.17 This reflected the stated intention in the consultation documents that less than 50% of household units of any development would be for social housing and the remainder would be a mix of affordable housing types.

		4.18 Legal advice to Council on the proposal from Kāinga Ora (to purchase and develop 42 Rutherford Street for 100% social housing as funding and development mechanisms are in place, and then purchase the 69 to 101 Achilles Ave site once iwi or other ...

		4.19 After considering 5 options in report R26867 some that could only proceed if the community was reconsulted on changing typologies and models, and some that could proceed under the current resolution’s framework from 28 October 2021, Council resol...

		Resolved CL/2022/155

		That the Council

		4.20 Officers continued to work with the Kāinga Ora project team to refine feasibility and attract development partners.  A feasibility and pathway meeting was held with the Mayor, Councillor Sanson, Pat Dougherty (then CE of NCC), Paul Commons (Deput...

		4.21 Advice from Kāinga Ora at that meeting was that Council’s resolutions where still too restrictive to enable a feasible development opportunity and attract a market partner.  Advice from the Mayor to the Kāinga Ora team was that this should be tes...

		4.22 In January 2023 Kāinga Ora gave internal approvals for the project team to launch a soft market approach and as a result they undertook an expressions of interest process as follows:

		4.23 On 29 June 2023 the Kāinga Ora project team and officers provided the Council with a confidential briefing on the results of that process.  In that briefing the Kainga Ora project director Colleen McCorkindale highlighted several risks with proce...

		4.24 At the briefing the Council reiterated the commitment to partner on this project and this resulted in the Mayors report to the 6 July 2023 meeting proposing, and the Council resolving:

		That the Council

		2.  Supports, as a necessary step to achieve a successful response to its continued procurement of a development partner via open tender for the City Centre Housing Development (on 69-101 Achilles Ave and 42 Rutherford St), Kāinga Ora’s intention to i...

		4.25 On 21 September 2023 the Kāinga Ora project team took an update to their Joint Public and Supported Housing and Urban Development Pae Tātaki seeking approval to commence an RFP process.  Feedback received was that before commencing there is a req...

		4.26 Kāinga Ora remain committed to a partnership development with the Council to achieve the strategic outcomes of both parties as identified within the relationship agreement, but require:

		4.27 These factors affect all city centre developers in Nelson, albeit Kāinga Ora as a government department may have a greater reputational, moral and financial liability risk threshold.

		Legal Advice on Council’s Liability on development in areas subject to Coastal Inundation

		4.28 Kāinga Ora have received legal advice in relation to their potential future liability of housing vulnerable people, and entering into a development partnership to leverage provide affordable housing, on a site that is subject to coastal inundatio...

		4.29 Use of the latest MfE interim guidance 2022 on sea level rise would result in the ground floor at the Achilles site being 2.2metres above the footpath.  This has an unacceptable urban design outcome for both Kāinga Ora and the Council on these pr...

		4.30 If the Council had a coastal inundation adaption strategy for the city centre that was to mitigate some of the effects of coastal inundation (say by a combination of stop banks, stormwater flood gates and stormwater pipes) then a lower ground flo...

		4.31 Officers have also received legal advice on the Council’s potential future liability arising from the sale of 42 Rutherford Street and 69 -101 Achilles Ave and the future consenting of a housing development at the site (or other land in the city ...

		4.32 The IPN is not aligned with the MfE Interim Guidance 2022 on the use of new sea level rise projections (the IPN is based on 1m of sea level rise). The recommended ground floor level for the Achilles site based on the Council’s current minimum sta...

		4.33 Legal advice on the two questions asked can be summarised as follows:

		4.34 The liability for the Council as vendor is low so long as the river flood and sea level rise inundation issues are fully disclosed to a purchaser, acknowledged by them and no warranties are given by Council that might impact on this issue, the li...

		4.35 The liability for the Council a regulator – when granting resource consents is likely to be limited, as there is no established duty of care owed by the Council as consent authority, although if the Council were to act in a clearly negligent way ...

		4.36 A cause of action in negligence can arise if there are deficiencies in the LIM provided, including a failure to disclose relevant information that is known to Council, even if not yet incorporated into Council policy documents or guidance. The Co...

		4.37 The advice also identified a more direct risk of liability in negligence for the Council as building consent authority, as there is an established duty of care owed in that context by way of caselaw.  The Council needs to take into account all re...

		4.38 The implications for the Council are that:

		Infrastructure Acceleration Fund

		4.39 In June 2021, the New Zealand Government announced the Infrastructure Acceleration Fund (IAF) initiative as part of the Housing Acceleration Fund announced in March 2021.

		4.40 The IAF is designed to allocate funding to new or upgraded infrastructure (such as transport, three waters and flood management infrastructure) to (1) unlock housing developments in the short-to-medium term, and (2) enable a meaningful contributi...

		4.41 The Council was successful in being awarded $36million in IAF funding for Bridge Street Linear Active Transport Corridor (now called Bridge to Better) and associated 3 waters and flood mitigation infrastructure works based on the Rutherford and A...

		4.42 On 22 September 2022 Council resolved:

		That the Council

		- Bridge Street Linear Active Transport Corridor and

		- Rutherford/Achilles Social and Affordable Housing Development

		(R27069) and its attachments (336940202-2645 and 336940202-2646); and

		4.43 The IAF funding agreement was subsequently signed by Minister of Housing Dr Megan Woods on 13 October 2022.  The funding was subject to Kāinga Ora the developer entering into a Housing Outcomes Agreement with the Council and the Crown to develop ...

		4.44 The Council subsequently approved funding of $3million via the Annual Plan 2023/24 and officers have since completed procurement of a design team, commenced engagement, and concept design for the Bridge to Better Project.  To secure the IAF fundi...



		5. Options

		5.1 The Council has the following three options to consider:

		5.2 The advantages, disadvantages and risks of each option are discussed in the table below.



		 Enables the Council to continue to leverage up to an additional 175 homes across two properties that are surplus to requirements, for the community during a housing crisis.

		 Enables Supports the Council to receive $36 million in grant funding from the Crown for significant infrastructure upgrade works in the city centre that will provide capacity for an additional 1000 homes in the city centre.

		 Enables Kāinga Ora to continue to work with Council and other partners to come up with a financially feasible development model.

		 Provides a commitment from the Council to advancing a strategy as to how coastal inundation will be dealt with in the city centre, providing Kāinga Ora and all developers in the city centre with the confidence to invest.  This may enable the commitment under the IAF to enter into further housing outcomes agreements with other developers to be met.

		 While the Council is developing a coastal inundation strategy, market construction conditions may improve which will improve the financial feasibility of construction on those sites meaning it is more likely that a development partner can be obtained for a proposal that meets Council current set of resolutions.

		 Combined with improvements in LIM, Building Consent and Resource Consent requirements for minimum ground levels a Coastal Inundation Adaptation Strategy will result in being able to lower ground levels and provide better urban design outcomes for the city centre while limiting liability.

		 Meets the requirements of the IAF contract for both Council and the development partners to “use all reasonable endeavours” to bring the development to fruition reducing the risk that the change in government may seek to pull back on funding and developments that are not yet underway or making progress.

		 Will result in a delay in leveraging realising social and affordable housing in a time where there is a housing crisis in Nelson.

		 The Council may be unable to deliver a coastal inundation strategy for the city centre in sufficient time for Kāinga Ora or other developer’s needs resulting in a loss of appetite to invest and partner.  This could lead to reputational damage for Council at a time where there is a strong focus on revitalising the city centre.

		 Delays in housing delivery will likely mean a variation to the IAF contract will need to be negotiated and could pose risks to receiving the funding as the new governments policy direction is bedded in.

		 Public perception may be that the Council is unable to deliver this housing in partnership with Kāinga Ora however this can be somewhat mitigated by joint public communications.

		 Enables the relationship with Kāinga Ora to be maintained and strengthened, as well as the significant time investment made by officers of both organisations in trying to leverage this housing.

		 May result in the identification of a site better suited to the purpose of social and affordable housing.

		 May enable social and affordable housing to be delivered in Nelson during a time of housing crisis.

		 May enable delivery of housing faster than waiting for Council to provide a coastal inundation strategy for the city centre.

		 Ensures that the commitment to the delivery of housing to support the IAF investment is maintained by showing Council is using “all reasonable endeavours” to bring the housing to fruition.

		 Enables other uses of gateway sites 42 Rutherford Street and 69 to 101 Achilles Avenue to be identified once Council has provided certainty in relation to coastal inundation.

		 Another site may not be able to be identified.

		 Another site may still have construction and supply financial feasibility issues.

		 Another site may result in a lower yield being delivered, the IAF team have advised that any reduction in yield by more than 10% will require Ministerial approval to vary the agreement, this brining further uncertainty during a time of changed government and priorities.

		 If another site is owned by the Council it may require a public feedback process or Public Works Act offer back requirements before entering into any agreement with Kāinga Ora for a housing development on it.

		 The change in government may mean that Kāinga Ora has a change in direction and is no longer able to commit commencing investment on a new site.

		 If another site is unable to be found within the catchment of Bridge to Better the Council may risk its IAF funding and reputational damage with the community at a time where there is a strong focus on revitalisation of the city centre.

		 None

		 No social and affordable housing is leveraged in a time where Nelson is in a housing crisis.

		 Could result in reputational damage with the community at a time where there is a strong focus on revitalisation of the city centre and historical failed Council projects have been highted in the media.

		 There is a risk that this will result in a loss of IAF funding where the new government sees funding committed but not being delivered on.

		6. Conclusion

		6.1



		7. Next Steps

		7.1



		Attachments

		

		

		 Might not result in finding any other party to purchase Rutherford and Achilles and may de-value those sites.

		 Any commercial or residential development that is consented on those sites prior to there being a coastal inundation strategy will be required to have ground levels constructed 2.2m above ground level (to follow the lates MfE guidance as recommended by legal advice) which will result in a poor urban design outcome for the city centre and set a precedent of acceptable building solutions.

		 Any commercial or residential development on those sites prior to a coastal inundation strategy that proposes and has approved minimum ground and floor levels in accordance with IPN may result in legal liability issues for Council in the future.

		

		Council has power to make this decision under [add name of legislation and relevant section]. The legal process that Council must follow to make [OR that applies to] this decision is [add]. 

		 Council’s decision must be made in accordance with Part 6 of the Local Government Act 2002.  In relation to this decision, this requires specific consideration of (add detail as appropriate e.g. if Special Consultative Procedure is required).

		 Xxxx

		 Xxxx

		 Xxxx



		23 12 19 Hon Chris Bishop on housing issues 19Dec2023.pdf

		24 01 11 FW_ Letter to Housing Minister & Numbers on Rutherford St_Achilles Ave.pdf

		24 01 16 RE_ Catch up .pdf

		24 02 27 FW_ Nelson City Centre.pdf

		Media release Nelson City Council Kainga Ora Nelson February 2024.pdf










 


 
 
 
 
15 May 2024 
 
 


 
Reporter 
Stuff 


 
 
Tēnā koe  
 
Thank you for your request to Kāinga Ora – Homes and Communities, dated 11 April 2024, under the 
Official Information Act 1982 (the Act) for the following information:  
 


I would like to see all correspondence between Kainga Ora and Nelson City Council, regarding 
the proposed development on Achilles Ave and Rutherford St in Nelson.   


 
On 16 April 2024, we asked you to refine your request, as there were a large number of emails within 
scope of your request. On the same day, you refined your request to: 
 


Correspondence relating to the decision to not proceed with development of Achilles Ave and 
Rutherford St. 


 
Please find attached the information requested that is within scope of your request. We have provided 
six emails to and/or from the Nelson City Council relating to our decision not to proceed with the 
development.  
 
Some information from the provided documents is withheld under the following sections of the Act: 


• 9(2)(a) to protect the privacy of natural persons 
• 9(2)(j) enable any public service agency or organisation holding the information to carry on, 


without prejudice or disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial 
negotiations) 


• 9(2)(h) to maintain legal professional privilege. 
 
We have withheld in full the following documents that were attachments to the emails provided: 


• KO Confidential Briefing 29 June 2023 has been withheld under section 9(2)(g)(i) of the Act to 
maintain the effective conduct of public affairs through the free and frank expression of 
opinions by or between employees of any public service agency or organisation in the course 
of their duty 


• Report: Kāinga Ora Social and Affordable Housing Development Achilles and Rutherford 
Streets has been withheld under sections 9(2)(h) and 9(2)(j) of the Act. 


I do not consider the withholding of the information is outweighed by public interest considerations in 
making that information available. 


In the attachment, we have also provided our Media Release: Nelson Central City housing options 
continue to be explored, for your information.  
You have the right to seek an investigation and review by the Ombudsman of my decision on your 
request. Information about how to make a complaint is available at www.ombudsman.parliament.nz or 
Freephone 0800 802 602. 
 


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)


s 9(2)(a)


RELEASED UNDER THE 


OFFICIAL INFORMATION ACT 1982



http://www.ombudsman.parliament.nz/





Please note that Kāinga Ora proactively releases its responses to official information requests where 
possible. Our response to your request may be published at 
https://kaingaora.govt.nz/publications/official-information-requests/, with your personal information 
removed.  
 
 
Nāku noa, nā 
 


 
Rachel Kelly 
Government Relations 
 
 


RELEASED UNDER THE 


OFFICIAL INFORMATION ACT 1982



https://kaingaora.govt.nz/publications/official-information-requests/







